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CHRONOLOGICAL INDEX TO APPELLANT/CROSS-RESPONDENT  

 TODD B. JAKSICK’S APPENDIX TO OPENING BRIEF  

 

DOCUMENT DATE 

FILED or 

ADMITTED 

VOL. 

NO. 

PAGE NO. 

 

Petition for Confirmation of Trustee 

and Admission of Trust to the 

Jurisdiction of the Court, and for 

Approval of Accountings and other 

Trust Administration Matters (SSJ’s 

Issue Trust) 

8.2.17 1 TJA000001-000203 

Petition for Confirmation of 

Trustees and Admission of Trust to 

the Jurisdiction of the Court, and 

For Approval of Accountings and 

Other Trust Administration Matters 

(Family Trust) (Separated)  

8.2.17 2 TJA000204-000401 

Petition for Confirmation of 

Trustees and Admission of Trust to 

the Jurisdiction of the Court, and 

For Approval of Accountings and 

Other Trust Administration Matters 

(Family Trust) (Separated) 

8.2.17 3 TJA00402-00585 

Respondent Wendy A. Jaksick’s 

Opposition and Objection to Petition 

10.10.17 4 TJA000586-000594 



for Confirmation of Trustees and 

Admission of Trust to the 

Jurisdiction of the Court, and for 

Approval of Accountings and Other 

Trust Administration Matters 

(Family Trust)  

Respondent Wendy A. Jaksick’s 

Answer to Petition for Approval of 

Accounting and Other Trust 

Administration Matters (Family 

Trust) 

10.10.17 4 TJA000595-000601 

Respondent Wendy A. Jaksick’s 

Answer to Petition for Approval of 

Accounting and Other Trust 

Administration Matters (Issue Trust) 

10.10.17 4 TJA000602-000606 

Respondent Wendy A. Jaksick’s 

Opposition and Objection to Petition 

for Confirmation of Trustees and 

Admission of Trust to the 

Jurisdiction of the Court, and for 

Approval of Accountings and Other 

Trust Administration Matters (Issue 

Trust) 

10.10.17 4 TJA000607-000614  

Commissioner’s Recommendation 

Referring Cases to Probate Judge  

10.12.17 4 TJA000615-000617  

Order Accepting Transfer  10.17.17 4 TJA000618-000620 



Notice of Appearance (Todd B. 

Jaksick, individually)  

11.3.17 4 TJA000621-000623 

Association of Counsel  1.2.18 4 TJA000624-000625 

Demand for Jury  1.3.18 4 TJA000626-000628 

Order Granting Consolidation  1.5.18  4 TJA000629-000631 

Counter-Petition to Surcharge 

Trustees for Breach of Fiduciary 

Duties, for Removal of Trustees and 

Appointment of Independent 

Trustee(s), and for Declaratory 

Judgment and other Relief  

1.19.18 4 TJA000632-000671  

Association of Counsel  2.23.18  4 TJA000672-000692  

Association of Counsel  2.23.18 4 TJA000693-000712 

First Amended Counter-Petition to 

Surcharge Trustees for Breach of 

Fiduciary Duties, for Removal of 

Trustee(s), and for Declaratory 

Judgment and Other Relief  

2.23.18  4 TJA000713-000752 

Order Associating Counsel  3.13.18  4 TJA000753-000754 

Order Associating Counsel  3.13.18  4 TJA000755-000756 

Notice of Entry of Order  3.13.18  4 TJA000757-000761 

Notice of Entry of Order  3.13.18  4 TJA000762-000766 

Todd B. Jaksick’s Answer and 

Objections to First Amended 

Counter-Petition to Surcharge 

Trustees for Breach of Fiduciary 

4.9.18  4 TJA000767-000779 



Duties, For Removal of Trustees 

and Appointment of Independent 

Trustee(s) and For Declaratory 

Judgment and Other Relief  

Todd B. Jaksick’s and Michael S. 

Kimmel’s Answer to First Amended 

Counter-Petition to Surcharge 

Trustees for Breach of Fiduciary 

Duties, For Removal of Trustees 

and Appointment of Independent 

Trustees, and for Declaratory 

Judgment and Other Relief  

4.13.18  4 TJA000780-000795 

Notice of Appearance  4.17.18  4 TJA000796-000799 

Kevin Riley’s Answer to First 

Amended Counter-Petition to 

Surcharge Trustees for Breach of 

Fiduciary Duties, For Removal of 

Trustees and Appointment of 

Independent Trustee(s), and For 

Declaratory Judgment and Other 

Relief  

4.17.18  5 TJA000800-000815  

Errata to Todd B. Jaksick’s and 

Michael S. Kimmel’s Answer to 

First Amended Counter-Petition to 

Surcharge Trustees for Breach of 

Fiduciary Duties, For Removal of 

4.19.18  5 TJA000816-000819 



Trustees and Appointment of 

Independent Trustees, and for 

Declaratory Judgment and Other 

Relief 

Errata to Kevin Riley’s Answer to 

First Amended Counter-Petition to 

Surcharge Trustees for Breach of 

Fiduciary Duties, For Removal of 

Trustees and Appointment of 

Independent Trustees, and for 

Declaratory Judgment and Other 

Relief 

4.19.18 5 TJA000820-000823 

Notice of Appearance  6.4.18  5 TJA000824-000827  

Notice of Appearance  6.4.18 5 TJA000828-000831 

Stanley S. Jaksick’s Answer to First 

Amended Counter-petition to 

Surcharge Trustees for Breach of 

Fiduciary Duties, For Removal of 

Trustees and Appointment of 

Independent Trustee(s), and for 

Declaratory Judgment and Other 

Relief  

8.2.18  5 TJA000832-000844 

Joinder to Stanley S. Jaksick’s 

Answer to First Amended Counter-

petition to Surcharge Trustees for 

Breach of Fiduciary Duties, For 

8.7.18 5 TJA000845-000847 



Removal of Trustees and 

Appointment of Independent 

Trustee(s), and for Declaratory 

Judgment and Other Relief  

Wendy Jaksick’s Motion for Leave 

to Join Indispensable Parties  

11.15.18  5 TJA000848-000855 

Todd B. Jaksick’s, Individually, 

Opposition to Wendy Jaksick’s 

Motion for Leave to Join 

Indispensable Parties  

12.6.18  5 TJA000856-000872 

Opposition to Wendy Jaksick’s 

Motion for Leave to Join 

Indispensable Parties  

12.6.18  5 TJA000873-000876 

Petitioner’s Opposition to Wendy 

Jaksick’s Motion for Leave to Join 

Indispensable Parties  

12.6.18  5 TJA000877-000898 

Wendy Jaksick’s Omnibus Reply in 

Support of Motion for Leave to Join 

Indispensable Parties  

12.17.18  5 TJA000899-000933 

Request for Submission of Wendy 

A. Jaksick’s Motion for Leave to 

Join Indispensable Parties  

12.18.18  5 TJA000934-000936 

Order Granting in Part and Denying 

in Part Motion for Leave to Join 

Indispensable Parties  

1.16.19 5 TJA000937-000948 

Pre-Trial Order Regarding Trial 1.22.19 5 TJA000949-000953 



Scheduled  

Verdicts  3.4.19 5 TJA000954-000957 

Motion for Order Awarding Costs 

and Attorneys’ Fees for Todd 

Jaksick, Individually, Duck Lake 

Ranch, LLC, and Incline TSS, Ltd.  

3.13.19 6 TJA000958-001157 

Petitioner Wendy A. Jaksick’s 

Opposition to Motion for Attorney 

Fees  

3.25.19 6 TJA001158-001175 

Reply in Support of Motion for 

Order Awarding Costs and 

Attorneys’ Fees for Todd Jaksick, 

Individually, Duck Lake Ranch, 

LLC and Incline TSS, Ltd.   

4.1.19 7 TJA001176-001185 

Request for Submission of Motion 

for Order Awarding Costs and 

Attorneys’ Fees  

4.1.19 7 TJA001186-001189 

Trial Transcript  5.13.19 7 TJA001190-001202 

Order Addressing Evidence at 

Equitable Trial  

5.20.19  7 TJA001203-001274 

Stanley Jaksick’s Written Closing 

Arguments  

7.1.19  7 TJA001275-001281 

Todd B. Jaksick’s Closing 

Argument Brief  

7.1.19 7 TJA001282-001362 

Wendy Jaksick’s Brief of Opening 

Arguments in the Equitable Claims 

7.1.19 8 TJA001363-001470 



Trial  

Petitioner’s Trial Brief on Equitable 

Claims  

7.1.19 8 TJA001471-001535 

Todd B. Jaksick’s Closing 

Argument Brief  

7.31.19  9 TJA001536-001623 

Petitioner’s Reply to Wendy 

Jaksick’s Trial Brief on Equitable 

Claims  

7.31.19 9 TJA001624-001661 

Wendy Jaksick’s Brief of Closing 

Arguments in the Equitable Claims 

Trial  

7.31.19 10 TJA001662-001757 

Stanley Jaksick’s Written Closing 

Reply Brief  

7.31.19 11 TJA001758-001977 

Order for Supplemental Briefing  2.6.20  12 TJA001978-001979 

Todd Jaksick’s Supplemental Brief 

in Response to the Court’s February 

6, 2020 Order for Supplemental 

Briefing  

2.18.20 12 TJA001980-002043 

Trustees’ Supplemental Brief  2.18.20  12 TJA002044-002077 

Supplemental Brief by Stanley 

Jaksick, Co-Trustee of the Samuel 

S. Jaksick, Jr. Family Trust  

2.18.20 12 TJA002078-002085 

Wendy Jaksick’s Supplemental 

Brief in the Equitable Claims Trial  

2.25.20 12 TJA002086-002093 

Order After Equitable Trial  3.12.20 12 TJA002094-002118 

Notice of Entry of Order  3.17.20  12 TJA002119-002146 



Memorandum of Costs  3.17.20  12 TJA002147-002164 

Verified Memorandum of Costs  3.23.20  13 TJA002165-002189 

Todd Jaksick’s Motion to Strike 

Wendy Jaksick’s Verified 

Memorandum of Costs or, in the 

Alternative, Motion to Retax Costs  

3.25.20 13 TJA002190-002194 

Motion to Strike Verified 

Memorandum of Costs  

3.26.20  13 TJA002195-002215 

Motion to Retax Costs and Joinder 

to Motions to Strike  

3.26.20  13 TJA002216-002219 

Judgment on Verdict and Order 

After Equitable Trial  

4.1.20  13 TJA002220-002254 

Notice of Entry of Judgment  4.1.20  13 TJA002255-002292 

Petitioners’ Verified Memorandum 

of Costs and Disbursements  

4.2.20  14 TJA002293-002409 

Memorandum of Costs and 

Disbursements  

4.2.20  14 TJA002410-002430 

Memorandum of Costs and 

Disbursements  

4.2.20  14 TJA002431-002442 

Joinder to Memorandum of Costs  4.6.20  14 TJA002443-002445 

Wendy Jaksick’s Response to Todd 

Jaksick’s Motion to Strike Wendy 

Jaksick’s Verified Memorandum of 

Costs, or in the Alternative, Motion 

to Retax Costs  

4.8.20  14 TJA002446-002450 

Motion for Attorneys’ Fees and 4.9.20  15 TJA002451-002615 



Costs – Kevin Riley  

Motion for Attorney’s Fees and 

Costs – Michael Kimmel  

4.9.20 16 TJA002616-002769 

Omnibus Opposition to Motions to 

Strike Wendy Jaksick’s Verified 

Memorandum of Costs filed by 

Trustees  

4.9.20  16 TJA002770-002776 

Motion for Attorney Fees and Costs 

for Todd Jaksick, Individually, for 

Trial on Equitable Claims  

4.10.20  16 TJA002777-002833 

Reply in Support of Motion to 

Strike Verified Memorandum of 

Costs  

4.13.20  17 TJA002834-002841 

Request for Submission  4.13.20  17 TJA002842-002845 

Order Denying Wendy Jaksick’s 

Costs  

4.21.20 17 TJA002846-002847 

Notice of Entry of Order  4.21.20  17 TJA002848-002857 

Memorandum of Attorney’s Fees by 

Stanley Jaksick, as Co-Trustee of 

the Family Trust  

4.22.20  17 TJA002858-002910 

Request for Submission  4.22.20 17 TJA002911-002913 

Opposition to Motion for Attorney’s 

Fees and Costs of Michael Kimmel, 

Individually and as Co-Trustee  

4.23.20  17 TJA002914-002930 

Opposition to Motion for Attorney’s 

Fees and Costs of Kevin Riley, 

4.23.20 17 TJA002931-002946 



Individually and as Co-Trustee of 

the Family Trust and as Trustee of 

the BHC Family Trust  

Opposition to Motion for Order 

Awarding Costs and Attorney’s 

Fees for Todd Jaksick, Individually 

on Equitable Claims  

4.24.20  17 TJA002947-002985 

Opposition and Motion to Strike 

Memorandum of Attorney’s Fees by 

Stanley Jaksick as Co-Trustee of the 

Family Trust  

4.27.20  17 TJA002986-002992 

Motion to Alter or Amend the 

Judgment  

4.28.20 17 TJA002993-003000 

Trial Transcript  5.13.19 17 TJA001190-001202 

Order Regarding Costs  4.30.20 18 TJA003044-003045 

Motion to Alter or Amend 

Judgment, or Alternatively, Motion 

for New Trial  

4.30.20 18 TJA003046-003113 

Reply in Support of Motion for 

Attorney’s Fees and Costs   

5.1.20  18 TJA003114-003126 

Request for Submission  5.1.20  18 TJA003127-003130 

Reply to Opposition to Motion for 

Order Awarding Costs and 

Attorney’s Fees for Todd Jaksick, 

Individually, For Trial on Equitable 

Claims  

5.1.20  18 TJA003131-003147 



Request for Submission  5.1.20  18 TJA003148-003151 

Todd B. Jaksick’s Opposition to 

Wendy Jaksick’s Motion to Alter or 

Amend Judgment, or, Alternatively, 

Motion for a New Trial  

5.8.20 18 TJA003152-003189 

Limited Joinder to Todd B. 

Jaksick’s Opposition to Wendy 

Jaksick’s Motion to Alter or Amend 

Judgment, or, Alternatively, Motion 

for a New Trial 

5.12.20 18 TJA003190-003196 

Opposition to Alter or Amend the 

Judgment Award of Attorney’s Fees 

to Wendy  

5.12.20  18 TJA003197-003205 

Supplemental Motion in Support of 

Award of Attorney’s Fees to Wendy 

Jaksick’s Attorneys  

5.12.20 19 TJA003206-003324 

Opposition to Todd B. Jaksick’s 

Motion to Amend the Judgment  

5.13.20  19 TJA003325-003339 

Opposition to Wendy Jaksick’s 

Motion to Alter or Amend 

Judgment, or in the Alternative, 

Motion for New Trial  

5.13.20  19 TJA003340-003344 

Reply to Wendy Jaksick’s Amended 

Opposition and Motion to Strike 

Stanley Jaksick’s Verified 

Memorandum of Attorney’s Fees as 

5.13.20  19 TJA003345-003348 



Co-Trustee of the Family Trust  

Wendy Jaksick’s Reply in Support 

of her Motion to Alter or Amend 

Judgment, or, Alternatively, Motion 

for New Trial  

5.15.20 19 TJA003349-003357 

Request for Submission  5.18.20  19 TJA003358-003365 

Reply in Support of Motion to Alter 

or Amend Judgment   

5.19.20 19 TJA003366-003372 

Request for Submission  5.19.20  19 TJA003373-003376 

Motion to Strike Wendy’s 

Supplemental Motion in Support of 

Award of Attorney’s Fees to Wendy 

Jaksick’s Attorneys  

5.19.20  19 TJA003377-003381 

Reply in Support of Todd B. 

Jaksick’s, Individually, Motion to 

Amend the Judgment  

5.19.20  20 TJA003382-003452 

Request for Submission  5.19.20 20 TJA003453-003456 

Order Awarding Costs  5.19.20  20 TJA003457 

Notice of Entry of Order  5.20.20  20 TJA003458-003461 

Petitioner’s Verified Memorandum 

of Attorney’s Fees  

5.21.20  21 TJA003462-003608 

Todd B. Jaksick’s Opposition to 

Wendy Jaksick’s Supplemental 

Motion in Support of Award of 

Attorney’s Fees  

5.21.20 21 TJA003609-003617 

Joinder to Todd B. Jaksick’s 6.1.20  21 TJA003618-003621 



Opposition to Wendy Jaksick’s 

Supplemental Motion  

Opposition to Motion to Strike 

Wendy’s Supplemental Motion in 

Support of Award of Attorney’s 

Fees to Wendy Jaksick’s Attorneys  

6.1.20  21 TJA003622-003627 

Reply in Support of Motion to 

Strike Wendy’s Supplemental 

Motion in Support of Award of 

Attorney’s Fees to Wendy Jaksick’s 

Attorneys  

6.8.20  21 TJA003628-003634 

Request for Submission  6.8.20  21 TJA003635-003638 

Order Resolving Submitted Matters  6.10.20  22 TJA003639-003646 

Notice of Appeal  7.10.20  22 TJA003647-003650 

Case Appeal Statement  7.10.20  22 TJA003651-003657 

Notice of Appeal  7.10.20  22 TJA003658-003661 

Case Appeal Statement  7.10.20  22 TJA003662-003669 

Notice of Appeal  7.13.20  22 TJA003670-003677 

Case Appeal Statement  7.13.20  22 TJA003678-003680 

Notice of Cross Appeal  7.21.20  22 TJA003681-003777 

Case Appeal Statement  7.21.20 22 TJA003778-003790 

Amended Judgment 7.6.20 22 TJA003791-003811 

 

 

 

 

 



ALPHABETICAL INDEX TO APPELLANT/CROSS-RESPONDENT  

 TODD B. JAKSICK’S APPENDIX TO OPENING BRIEF  

 

DOCUMENT DATE FILED 

or ADMITTED 

VOL. 

NO. 

PAGE NO. 

 

Amended Judgment 7.6.20 22 TJA003791-003811 

Association of Counsel  1.2.18 4 TJA000624-000625 

Association of Counsel  2.23.18  4 TJA000672-000692  

Association of Counsel  2.23.18 4 TJA000693-000712 

Case Appeal Statement  7.10.20  22 TJA003651-003657 

Case Appeal Statement  7.10.20  22 TJA003662-003669 

Case Appeal Statement  7.13.20  22 TJA003678-003680 

Case Appeal Statement  7.21.20 22 TJA003778-003790 

Commissioner’s Recommendation 

Referring Cases to Probate Judge  

10.12.17 4 TJA000615-000617  

Counter-Petition to Surcharge 

Trustees for Breach of Fiduciary 

Duties, for Removal of Trustees 

and Appointment of Independent 

Trustee(s), and for Declaratory 

Judgment and other Relief  

1.19.18 4 TJA000632-000671  

Demand for Jury  1.3.18 4 TJA000626-000628 

Errata to Kevin Riley’s Answer to 

First Amended Counter-Petition to 

Surcharge Trustees for Breach of 

Fiduciary Duties, For Removal of 

4.19.18 5 TJA000820-000823 



Trustees and Appointment of 

Independent Trustees, and for 

Declaratory Judgment and Other 

Relief 

Errata to Todd B. Jaksick’s and 

Michael S. Kimmel’s Answer to 

First Amended Counter-Petition to 

Surcharge Trustees for Breach of 

Fiduciary Duties, For Removal of 

Trustees and Appointment of 

Independent Trustees, and for 

Declaratory Judgment and Other 

Relief 

4.19.18  5 TJA000816-000819 

First Amended Counter-Petition to 

Surcharge Trustees for Breach of 

Fiduciary Duties, for Removal of 

Trustee(s), and for Declaratory 

Judgment and Other Relief  

2.23.18  4 TJA000713-000752 

Joinder to Memorandum of Costs  4.6.20  14 TJA002443-002445 

Joinder to Stanley S. Jaksick’s 

Answer to First Amended 

Counter-petition to Surcharge 

Trustees for Breach of Fiduciary 

Duties, For Removal of Trustees 

and Appointment of Independent 

Trustee(s), and for Declaratory 

8.7.18 5 TJA000845-000847 



Judgment and Other Relief  

Joinder to Todd B. Jaksick’s 

Opposition to Wendy Jaksick’s 

Supplemental Motion  

6.1.20  21 TJA003618-003621 

Judgment on Verdict and Order 

After Equitable Trial  

4.1.20  13 TJA002220-002254 

Kevin Riley’s Answer to First 

Amended Counter-Petition to 

Surcharge Trustees for Breach of 

Fiduciary Duties, For Removal of 

Trustees and Appointment of 

Independent Trustee(s), and For 

Declaratory Judgment and Other 

Relief  

4.17.18  5 TJA000800-000815  

Limited Joinder to Todd B. 

Jaksick’s Opposition to Wendy 

Jaksick’s Motion to Alter or 

Amend Judgment, or, 

Alternatively, Motion for a New 

Trial 

5.12.20 18 TJA003190-003196 

Memorandum of Attorney’s Fees 

by Stanley Jaksick, as Co-Trustee 

of the Family Trust  

4.22.20  17 TJA002858-002910 

Memorandum of Costs  3.17.20  12 TJA002147-002164 

Memorandum of Costs and 

Disbursements  

4.2.20  14 TJA002410-002430 



Memorandum of Costs and 

Disbursements  

4.2.20  14 TJA002431-002442 

Motion for Attorney Fees and 

Costs for Todd Jaksick, 

Individually, for Trial on 

Equitable Claims  

4.10.20  16 TJA002777-002833 

Motion for Attorney’s Fees and 

Costs – Michael Kimmel  

4.9.20 16 TJA002616-002769 

Motion for Attorneys’ Fees and 

Costs – Kevin Riley  

4.9.20  15 TJA002451-002615 

Motion for Order Awarding Costs 

and Attorneys’ Fees for Todd 

Jaksick, Individually, Duck Lake 

Ranch, LLC, and Incline TSS, 

Ltd.  

3.13.19 6 TJA000958-001157 

Motion to Alter or Amend 

Judgment, or Alternatively, 

Motion for New Trial  

4.30.20 18 TJA003046-003113 

Motion to Alter or Amend the 

Judgment  

4.28.20 17 TJA002993-003000 

Motion to Retax Costs and Joinder 

to Motions to Strike  

3.26.20  13 TJA002216-002219 

Motion to Strike Verified 

Memorandum of Costs  

3.26.20  13 TJA002195-002215 

Motion to Strike Wendy’s 

Supplemental Motion in Support 

5.19.20  19 TJA003377-003381 



of Award of Attorney’s Fees to 

Wendy Jaksick’s Attorneys  

Notice of Appeal  7.10.20  22 TJA003647-003650 

Notice of Appeal  7.10.20  22 TJA003658-003661 

Notice of Appeal  7.13.20  22 TJA003670-003677 

Notice of Appearance  6.4.18  5 TJA000824-000827  

Notice of Appearance  6.4.18 5 TJA000828-000831 

Notice of Appearance  4.17.18  4 TJA000796-000799 

Notice of Appearance (Todd B. 

Jaksick, individually)  

11.3.17 4 TJA000621-000623 

Notice of Cross Appeal  7.21.20  22 TJA003681-003777 

Notice of Entry of Judgment  4.1.20  13 TJA002255-002292 

Notice of Entry of Order  3.13.18  4 TJA000757-000761 

Notice of Entry of Order  3.13.18  4 TJA000762-000766 

Notice of Entry of Order  3.17.20  12 TJA002119-002146 

Notice of Entry of Order  4.21.20  17 TJA002848-002857 

Notice of Entry of Order  5.20.20  20 TJA003458-003461 

Omnibus Opposition to Motions 

to Strike Wendy Jaksick’s 

Verified Memorandum of Costs 

filed by Trustees  

4.9.20  16 TJA002770-002776 

Opposition and Motion to Strike 

Memorandum of Attorney’s Fees 

by Stanley Jaksick as Co-Trustee 

of the Family Trust  

4.27.20  17 TJA002986-002992 

Opposition to Alter or Amend the 5.12.20  18 TJA003197-003205 



Judgment Award of Attorney’s 

Fees to Wendy  

Opposition to Motion for 

Attorney’s Fees and Costs of 

Kevin Riley, Individually and as 

Co-Trustee of the Family Trust 

and as Trustee of the BHC Family 

Trust  

4.23.20 17 TJA002931-002946 

Opposition to Motion for 

Attorney’s Fees and Costs of 

Michael Kimmel, Individually and 

as Co-Trustee  

4.23.20  17 TJA002914-002930 

Opposition to Motion for Order 

Awarding Costs and Attorney’s 

Fees for Todd Jaksick, 

Individually on Equitable Claims  

4.24.20  17 TJA002947-002985 

Opposition to Motion to Strike 

Wendy’s Supplemental Motion in 

Support of Award of Attorney’s 

Fees to Wendy Jaksick’s 

Attorneys  

6.1.20  21 TJA003622-003627 

Opposition to Todd B. Jaksick’s 

Motion to Amend the Judgment  

5.13.20  19 TJA003325-003339 

Opposition to Wendy Jaksick’s 

Motion for Leave to Join 

Indispensable Parties  

12.6.18  5 TJA000873-000876 



Opposition to Wendy Jaksick’s 

Motion to Alter or Amend 

Judgment, or in the Alternative, 

Motion for New Trial  

5.13.20  19 TJA003340-003344 

Order Accepting Transfer  10.17.17 4 TJA000618-000620 

Order Addressing Evidence at 

Equitable Trial  

5.20.19  7 TJA001203-001274 

Order After Equitable Trial  3.12.20 12 TJA002094-002118 

Order Associating Counsel  3.13.18  4 TJA000753-000754 

Order Associating Counsel  3.13.18  4 TJA000755-000756 

Order Awarding Costs  5.19.20  20 TJA003457 

Order Denying Wendy Jaksick’s 

Costs  

4.21.20 17 TJA002846-002847 

Order for Supplemental Briefing  2.6.20  12 TJA001978-001979 

Order Granting Consolidation  1.5.18  4 TJA000629-000631 

Order Granting in Part and 
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·1· · · ·RENO, NEVADA -- MON. 5/10/19 -- 9:57 A.M.

·2· · · · · · · · · · · · ·-o0o-

·3· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Thank you.· Please be seated.

·4· Good morning, everyone.

·5· · · · · ·Let's begin with appearances.

·6· · · · · ·MR. CONNOT:· Mark Connot and Kevin Spencer

·7· on behalf of Wendy Jaksick.· Also in the courtroom

·8· today is Blake Spencer, Mr. Spencer's son, who is an

·9· attorney in-house.

10· · · · · ·MR. SPENCER:· And he's not admitted pro hac

11· vice.

12· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Good morning.

13· · · · · ·MR. ROBISON:· Morning.· Kent Robison for

14· Todd Jaksick individually and as a beneficiary.

15· · · · · ·MR. LATTIN:· Don Lattin on behalf of Stan,

16· Todd, Mike Kimmel and Kevin Riley in all various

17· capacities, which I will not repeat.· Thank you.

18· · · · · ·MR. HOSMER-HENNER:· Good morning, your

19· Honor.· Adam Hosmer-Henner of McDonald, Carano on

20· behalf of Stanley Jaksick as co-trustee.

21· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Thank you, counsel.· I'll just

22· repeat for the record what you already know, and

23· that is that I conducted a telephone conference and

24· then I summarily, with not as much kindness as I'd

Page 4
·1· hoped, ended the conference call and suggested that

·2· we should conduct ourselves on the record.

·3· · · · · ·I have endeavored to prepare by reading the

·4· voluminous materials.· I believe I will start with

·5· arguments and requests from petitioner's counsel,

·6· arguments and suggestions from counter-petitioner's

·7· counsel, and then I may or may not share my initial

·8· inclinationes as we begin the equitable claims.

·9· · · · · ·On behalf of Petitioners, Mr. Lattin, do

10· you wish to be heard?

11· · · · · ·MR. LATTIN:· Yes, your Honor.· I'm not

12· quite sure how you want to proceed.· I can tell you

13· my thoughts.

14· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Just -- okay.

15· · · · · ·MR. LATTIN:· First of all, there are two

16· petitions and two supplemental petitions that were

17· filed on behalf of the various trusts, and I think

18· by this point we all know what the trusts are so

19· I'll try not to go through them by name.

20· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Thank you.

21· · · · · ·MR. LATTIN:· All of the trust documents,

22· which are Exhibits 126, 130, 131, and 172, and which

23· are the SSJ's Issue Trust accountings, are into

24· evidence.· All of the Family Trust accountings,

Page 5
·1· which are 72, 73, 74, and 182, are also into

·2· evidence.

·3· · · · · ·It is the petitioners' belief that there

·4· has been a significant amount of testimony on the

·5· accountings.· They're into evidence.· There has been

·6· testimony by Mr. Wallace that they complied with the

·7· statutory requirements.· I have attached to my trial

·8· statement the testimony of Mr. Campagne, who also

·9· indicated that the accountings complied with the

10· statutory requirements.

11· · · · · ·And so it is our belief that with regard to

12· the accountings and the testimony that's already

13· been given, the only question related to the

14· accountings was the designation by Kevin Riley

15· regarding the hyphen, which the testimony by Todd

16· Jaksick was that it either indicates a zero value or

17· a less-than-zero value in the accountings.

18· · · · · ·Other than that, there has been nothing

19· requested other than the argument that there was

20· inadequate disclosure in the accountings.· That was

21· an issue that the petitioners feel has been

22· addressed by the jury and needs no further

23· discussion regarding that.

24· · · · · ·So, with regard to the accountings, we

http://www.litigationservices.com
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·1· believe that those can be approved as being in

·2· compliance with the statute.· The statutes are

·3· marked as, I believe, Exhibit No. 177, 178, which

·4· they have not been admitted into evidence but I

·5· believe that the Court can take judicial notice of

·6· the statutes that relate to the accountings.

·7· · · · · ·You will see in NRS 165.135 that there is

·8· an actual form designation in the statute which, if

·9· you look at it, there's a form.· If you look at page

10· two of each accounting that's already into evidence,

11· you will see that that form meets precisely with the

12· statute.· So, we believe that the accountings can be

13· approved and we would request that the accountings

14· both in the petition and the supplemental petition

15· for both Family Trust and the Issue Trust be

16· approved, so that would be our position on that.

17· · · · · ·Obviously, if there are issues that are

18· raised in their testimony that was not by counsel

19· for Wendy's counter-petitions, we would like to have

20· the opportunity to respond to that.· I'm quite

21· confident that there will be objections, that that

22· has already been an issue that has been tried before

23· the Court.· So, with regard to the accountings, we

24· would request that the Court based upon the evidence

Page 7
·1· of Campagne, Mr. Wallace, and Todd Jaksick, that

·2· those be approved as being in compliance with the

·3· requisite statutes.

·4· · · · · ·We are also requesting in our petitions

·5· that the ACPAs be approved and I believe Mr. Robison

·6· is going to have some arguments on the

·7· indemnification, which is in his wheelhouse and not

·8· mine.· But with regard to the ACPAs, those have all

·9· been admitted into testimony.· We have heard

10· substantial testimony from Pierre Hascheff, from

11· Todd Jaksick, from Stan Jaksick, and from Wendy

12· regarding those ACPAs, the intent, how they came

13· about, and we believe that those should be approved

14· as well.

15· · · · · ·We're into the area now of is this an

16· opening or is this a closing.· And with regard to

17· the constructive trust, the unjust enrichment

18· arguments, it is my belief and -- that that would be

19· subject to -- if they're going to present testimony

20· in those areas, we would be able to respond as

21· defendants or counter-objecting petitioners, so we

22· believe that that would fall into that area as would

23· the issue of removal of trustee.· That was raised in

24· their counterpetition and not in our petition other
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·1· than we are asking for affirmation that all of the

·2· trustees be approved.· So, that kind of is an area

·3· that is a crossover area between their

·4· counterpetition and our petition.· I believe it

·5· would be more appropriate to either respond to their

·6· argument or their testimony.· So, that's my view

·7· from where we are.

·8· · · · · ·We have the huge Seventh Amendment argument

·9· issue and I believe the Court indicated that you

10· wanted some argument on that to start off this.  I

11· don't know that's where --

12· · · · · ·THE COURT:· I did when we were on the

13· phone, but having read the written arguments, I

14· don't want to take the time before evidence to argue

15· Seventh Amendment -- the overlap between the jury

16· trial and whether this court supplants the verdict

17· in any way, but I do want that argument at the

18· conclusion.

19· · · · · ·MR. LATTIN:· Okay.

20· · · · · ·THE COURT:· What do you anticipate, Mr.

21· Robison's role, who is a very active, sequential

22· role between you and Mr. Robison in front of the

23· jury?· Mr. Robison represented Todd individually and

24· you just indicated that there will be arguments upon

Page 9
·1· evidence from Mr. Robison on the ACPAs and

·2· indemnifications.· How do you anticipate the burden

·3· being shared between you and Mr. Robison?

·4· · · · · ·MR. LATTIN:· Well, as we attempted to do in

·5· the trial -- and I think successfully so -- we are

·6· going to streamline our efforts and we're not going

·7· to duplicate.· There are crossover issues relative

·8· to individual claims and claims as trustee.· To the

·9· extent that -- the way that we have divided up the

10· case is he is primarily handling the indemnification

11· issues as we believe they are more individual as

12· opposed to trustee items.

13· · · · · ·With regard to the ACPA -- one of the ACPAs

14· that we seek approval, there is reference to the

15· indemnification agreement.· So, we are seeking

16· approval of an ACPA that has a reference to the

17· validity of the indemnification provision between

18· Todd and Stan.· We seek approval of it, we believe

19· there's been testimony on it, and I would defer to

20· Mr. Robison for argument as to how it impacts

21· everybody individually and how it should be treated

22· by the Court.

23· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay, thank you.

24· · · · · ·Anything else?
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·1· · · · · ·MR. LATTIN:· Not at this point in time.

·2· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay, thank you.· Mr. Robison.

·3· · · · · ·MR. ROBISON:· I assume this is not opening

·4· statement or -- okay.· Your Honor, I think that my

·5· role in this case is certainly less substantial than

·6· it was in the jury trial.· We have taken the

·7· position in front of the jury that the Court's

·8· consideration of the indemnification agreement will

·9· be determined and now we're here this week for that

10· determination.

11· · · · · ·We're not presenting new evidence.· Pierre

12· Hascheff has testified quite substantially on that

13· issue.· Todd might address that very briefly.· We

14· have an unjust enrichment/constructive trust claim

15· that I believe pertains to Todd individually that

16· there's a motion for summary judgment pending on

17· that, we briefed it and we believe that we can argue

18· that aspect of the case if it survives motion and

19· has not already been determined, essentially, by the

20· jury with them.· It's explicit and implicit findings

21· in that verdict presented to the Court where I'm

22· prepared to defend that as well.

23· · · · · ·Your Honor, there are release -- there is

24· release language to Todd individually in each one of
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·1· the ACPAs.· To the extent they're approved, ratified

·2· and acknowledged by this court Todd is released from

·3· having --

·4· · · · · ·THE COURT:· I'm sorry.· There's was a

·5· backhoe or something.· Todd is released from

·6· something. I didn't hear it.

·7· · · · · ·MR. ROBISON:· Each of the ACPAs that were

·8· signed by Wendy and Stan contain release language of

·9· Todd individually.· And so to that extent I'm going

10· to encourage the Court to adopt and ratify the ACPAs

11· so that that language that releases Todd from any

12· liability in those transactions is enforced.

13· · · · · ·THE COURT:· I think you're suggesting -- or

14· I'm inferring -- that we should begin with the

15· petitioner's request for the accountings and the

16· ACPA identification issues but then shift the

17· counter-petitioners to present evidence and

18· arguments on constructive trust, unjust enrichment

19· and removal so that the burden kind of shifts mid

20· trial here.· Do you agree?

21· · · · · ·MR. ROBISON:· I do.

22· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay.

23· · · · · ·MR. ROBISON:· Until we get to the

24· counter-petitions, counter-allegations in the first
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·1· amended counter petition, I probably don't have a

·2· dog in the fight.· But I do want to raise -- I got

·3· back from trial Friday night and that was a second

·4· supplemental petition filed without motion and we

·5· wanted to be heard on striking that fugitive

·6· pleading.

·7· · · · · ·It's kind of an orphan-page document that

·8· was not filed with respect to compliance with Rule

·9· 15.· Rule 15-D requires a motion be filed before any

10· supplemental pleadings can be filed.· And we'd like

11· to move to strike that and we'd like to be heard

12· sometime during this procedure on striking that

13· document.

14· · · · · ·THE COURT:· But even if the second

15· supplemental filed on May 9th at 2:21 in the

16· afternoon, even if that's stricken, its contents

17· seem to have some bearing on the issue before the

18· court, and that is the allegation that the

19· accountings have been systematically late.

20· · · · · ·So, first, I guess, will be the quality,

21· the content, but then there has been a breach of

22· statute because of the timing of the accountings.

23· · · · · ·MR. ROBISON:· We've been involved in this

24· case for over a year -- a year and four or five
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·1· months.· We tried four weeks of testimony, 500

·2· exhibits.· We know about the disclosures, we know

·3· about the accountings.· Like I said, I'm not

·4· involved in that.

·5· · · · · ·But what's brought up in that second

·6· supplemental pleading to the extent it's relevant

·7· and pertains to what's left to be tried in this case

·8· under the original pleadings, we're good with that

·9· and we understand that, your Honor.

10· · · · · ·But to be subjected to a second supplement

11· one full day before the trial starts is, not only

12· unfair, it violates the statute.· And we have 20

13· days to respond if you don't strike it.· I don't

14· know what we're gonna do about that other than

15· ignore it.

16· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Anything else?

17· · · · · ·MR. ROBISON:· No, sir.

18· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Thank you.· Mr. Hosmer-Henner?

19· · · · · ·MR. HOSMER-HENNER:· May I speak from here,

20· your Honor?

21· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Yes.

22· · · · · ·MR. HOSMER-HENNER:· Your Honor, Stanley

23· Jaksick as co-trustee of the Family Trust is not a

24· petitioner so his involvement in this case is only
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·1· as a respondent to the counter-petitions brought by

·2· Wendy Jaksick.· With that, I'll reserve any opening

·3· statement or argument.· I have two procedural

·4· issues.

·5· · · · · ·The first is definitely with respect to the

·6· second supplemental that was just filed on May 9th.

·7· Procedurally, because this is a probate matter under

·8· Title 12 and 13, this is a little bit different so

·9· we formally note our objection to that

10· counterpetition as well as move to strike it under

11· Rule 15.

12· · · · · ·Our objections to that are manifold.· It

13· goes beyond just introducing new evidence because

14· this originally arose out of a discovery request to

15· compel the production of accountings rather than a

16· claim for violation of the statute for failure to

17· account.

18· · · · · ·This supplement is a substantive pleading

19· that actually seeks to surcharge the cotrustees for

20· breach of fiduciary duty, which is something that

21· should have been brought in the jury trial in

22· addition to many other procedural defects with this.

23· And so because this was disclosed at the last

24· minute, it's more than just an evidentiary
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·1· supplement to their petition.· It actually changes

·2· the substantive effect of what would be tried before

·3· this court in terms of duties, obligations to

·4· account, evidence and discovery necessary to respond

·5· to this alleged supplement to an amended

·6· counterpetition.

·7· · · · · ·So, we would ask that that be resolved

·8· first, because if we're going forward in this trial,

·9· how the trial looks becomes very different if all of

10· a sudden we're having to respond to new claims and

11· allegations based on a failure to account that

12· wasn't even triggered until January of this year.

13· · · · · ·The second substantive issue is not global

14· but is specific to Stanley Jaksick.· I previously

15· sent a communication to counsel for Todd Jaksick and

16· counsel for Wendy Jaksick asking for a reference to

17· Exhibit 23.41 that was made in their motion for

18· attorneys' fees and the opposition to the motion for

19· attorneys' fees that that be redacted.

20· · · · · ·That exhibit was sealed and I didn't

21· receive a response to that communication.· I believe

22· that the inclusion of a reference to that sealed

23· exhibit in that public filing is improper, so I'd

24· ask that that be resolved so I don't have to resort
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·1· to motion practice in this type of proceeding.  I

·2· can't imagine there's an objection to conforming

·3· their filings with this Court's existing order

·4· sealing that document.· So, in an effort to minimize

·5· attorneys' fees and costs, we've held off in order

·6· to address that now.· If it's necessary and we can't

·7· get agreement today, we'll proceed with motion

·8· practice on that.

·9· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Thank you.

10· Counter-petitioners.

11· · · · · ·MR. SPENCER:· Thank you, your Honor.· Good

12· morning.

13· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Good morning.

14· · · · · ·MR. SPENCER:· Just for ease of reference, I

15· want to -- if you don't mind, I'll address a couple

16· of things at the end of their arguments.· I think we

17· can put a few of them aside.

18· · · · · ·As far Exhibit 23.41, the redaction was

19· agreed.· I think the agreement involved the

20· redaction being made prior to or without the jury

21· knowing what was said in that document.· I don't

22· know that the document itself was ever sealed.  I

23· don't remember ever agreeing to that.

24· · · · · ·But as far as the redaction goes, we don't
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·1· object to that being sealed and I think there were

·2· just two lines in that exhibit that needed to be

·3· covered up and were for the jury but they can be for

·4· all purposes, as far as we're concerned.

·5· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay.

·6· · · · · ·MR. SPENCER:· Addressing the issue of the

·7· second supplemental petition, that really turns upon

·8· the struggle that we had and, I guess, maybe we need

·9· some instruction from your Honor about this

10· particular trial, the equity trial.· I think you

11· mentioned -- I hope I'm saying this correctly -- in

12· the phone call that this is a continuation of the

13· previous trial, which would be -- it could have been

14· tried the next Monday and it would all have been

15· tried at the same time.

16· · · · · ·The second supplemental petition and some

17· of the evidence that we intend to offer into

18· evidence today involves matters that have occurred

19· since the last trial.· And so if that's not going --

20· we were struggling with whether to just file a new

21· lawsuit over the content of the second supplement

22· petition, or as your Honor indicated, that it may

23· sort of part and parcel to a continuing string of

24· activity by the trustees, it would make sense,
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·1· rather than start a whole new battle, just to tack

·2· it on, so that's what we decided to do because it's

·3· so pertinent.

·4· · · · · ·THE COURT:· So, I flew through it without

·5· the care I would typically provide because I knew

·6· when it was filed and that it didn't feel fair to

·7· let it influence me without oppositional time and

·8· submission.

·9· · · · · ·Would you agree that the seminal issue in

10· your second supplement is just the tardiness year

11· over year over year of the accountings?

12· · · · · ·MR. SPENCER:· Yes, and the lack of the

13· updating the accountings even this year for 2018, so

14· yes.

15· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay.

16· · · · · ·MR. SPENCER:· Which, your Honor, ties into

17· one of the issues that came up during the jury

18· trial, which I think will be part of this part of

19· the trial, which has to do with that $4 million -- I

20· call it "the $4 million exhibit" where the jury

21· heard evidence, testimony that, Well, gosh, we're

22· ready to distribute $4 million to Wendy right now,

23· and there's no indication anywhere in any of the

24· accountings that that's the case.
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·1· · · · · ·And so the reason that we filed it -- we

·2· admittedly filed it late, but it was because we

·3· didn't want to file a new lawsuit if it could be

·4· heard at this hearing.· If it can't be heard here,

·5· we'll understand that and we'll go about our

·6· business on that separately, but we think it's sort

·7· of a continuation of the exact complaints that we

·8· had prior to the last jury trial.

·9· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay.

10· · · · · ·MR. SPENCER:· So, with that being said,

11· addressing the accounting issues, you heard the

12· argument that, Well, these comply with the statute,

13· these accountings comply with the statute.

14· · · · · ·In saying that, as far as I heard, the

15· compliance with the statute primarily dealt with

16· their form, that they contained information that

17· would be expected of an accounting by virtue of the

18· statute, but, they were defective in numerous ways,

19· one of which you --

20· · · · · ·THE COURT:· So I disallowed opening

21· arguments.· I'm just trying to get the procedural

22· here.· I want to give everybody an opportunity but i

23· don't want you to substitute opening.· I'm just

24· thinking about who goes first.· I'm pretty clear on
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·1· what the claims are.

·2· · · · · ·MR. SPENCER:· Thank you for that.· Then

·3· I'll preserve our arguments on that issue for a

·4· later time.

·5· · · · · ·In response to the request that the

·6· accountings be approved and that the ACPAs be

·7· approved, obviously, we object to that and we

·8· believe there are myriad fact issues, fact questions

·9· in that regard.

10· · · · · ·Procedurally, we were trying to get to

11· this, I think, in our phone call ten days ago or so,

12· and I think now we have a better handle of what we

13· expect to do in this trial.· I mentioned that I

14· didn't think it would go all week and I -- despite

15· your skepticism, I think that that still may be the

16· case, based upon the number of documents that we

17· have to enter into evidence.

18· · · · · ·And it may be that it's a situation where

19· we just offer documents into evidence.· We may have

20· one or two witnesses, but I don't even know about

21· that, depending on what petitioners do, and then Mr.

22· Connot will have a supplement to what I'm saying

23· procedurally.· But considering the mountain of

24· evidence that your Honor heard with the jury, it was
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·1· suggested that we write a brief, or what I would

·2· call a written closing argument, to give you a

·3· roadmap of how we would see the evidence being

·4· presented to you and the equitable portion and then,

·5· obviously, our opponents would get to do the same.

·6· · · · · ·It would be my request that, once the

·7· evidence is presented or put into the evidence, then

·8· that would be how best -- I think summarizing it in

·9· writing would be best for you from a simplicity

10· standpoint and how we see the evidence where we can

11· refer to exhibits, we can refer to statutes, other

12· evidence, and show -- at least argue to your Honor

13· how we see how we've met our preponderance of the

14· evidence burden.

15· · · · · ·And certainly we can do it -- we're gonna

16· do it however your Honor orders, but that to me is

17· the clearest and easiest way, I think, to tell you

18· how we see the evidence from February.

19· · · · · ·And so with, that I'll pass the baton to

20· Mr. Connot on a few other issues.

21· · · · · ·MR. CONNOT:· Just to briefly follow up on

22· what Mr. Spencer said, certainly however the Court

23· wants to do this.· But one thing we were discussing

24· that we thought made the most sense is, if there is
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·1· additional testimony that petitioners on their

·2· issues want to put on, certainly put it on.· If

·3· there's any additional testimony counter-petitioners

·4· want to put on, put that evidence and testimony on

·5· or into the record.· If it's just documents, we can

·6· reach an agreement on the documents.

·7· · · · · ·And sort of the thought is that, while

·8· certainly if that's what your Honor wants, I'm not

·9· sure how productive it is for counsel to stand up

10· here and make a flowery closing argument, you know,

11· sporadically referring to exhibits here and there.

12· · · · · ·And one thing that we had discussed, last

13· night even, was the concept of potentially sort of

14· when Mr. Spencer said, written closing arguments due

15· at some point in the relatively near future where

16· the parties could cite to specific evidence in the

17· record, whether it came in during the jury trial,

18· but not to have and say, Well, here's 580 exhibits,

19· your Honor, we're going to throw out three or four

20· or seven we think are the most important for you to

21· look at in an oral closing argument.

22· · · · · ·Rather, while each side, I'm sure, will

23· have their own perspective as to what particular

24· evidence does or does not demonstrate for the Court,

Page 23
·1· I still think that that would be a mechanism whereby

·2· citing to a specific exhibit and saying, you know,

·3· here's the proposition that either side argues,

·4· here's the exhibit or testimony that supports that

·5· would seem to make it a more cogent closing for your

·6· Honor and an ability to say, Okay, now I really know

·7· that here's the specific exhibits to which they want

·8· to refer the ones that support their specific claims

·9· that are part of the equitable trial, so that was --

10· I mean, it's a suggestion for the Court.

11· · · · · ·We'd certainly like the opportunity to

12· respond on the Seventh Amendment issues raised last

13· week, you know, but that's just sort of the

14· suggested procedure.

15· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Thank you.· With just a yes or

16· no -- I will not ask a followup question and I don't

17· want any details -- but since the legal claims ended

18· have there been any conversations about how this

19· case resolves?

20· · · · · ·MR. ROBISON:· Yes, but I wasn't involved.

21· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay.· And, yes, you agree

22· there was some conversation.

23· · · · · ·MR. LATTIN:· Yes, your Honor.

24· · · · · ·MR. CONNOT:· Yes.· I don't -- if you're
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·1· comfortable saying it --

·2· · · · · ·MR. SPENCER:· They're ongoing.

·3· · · · · ·THE COURT:· I don't want to hear them.

·4· · · · · ·MR. CONNOT:· Yes, there have.

·5· · · · · ·THE COURT:· As I sat through trial and as I

·6· prepared for the equitable claims, I attempted to

·7· define my role and even at this moment I'm uncertain

·8· of what my role should be.· I can be a classical

·9· judge appearing stoic, not asking questions, not

10· drilling into the process as it unfolds but simply

11· awaiting the evidence, consider the arguments and

12· then make a decision when you're all done.· That's

13· one way and I'm happy to do that.· I do that

14· regularly.

15· · · · · ·I can also be more of a -- what a professor

16· elsewhere calls a romanticized judge, one who bends

17· tradition a little bit, engages in signals, which is

18· why I asked the last question.· You may guess,

19· counsel, that having participated in the legal

20· claims I have some inclinations.· In fact, I've

21· penciled out subject to evidence and arguments kind

22· of what I think.· And I don't know whether I should

23· now call for arguments and evidence or whether I

24· should say anymore, because as soon as I start
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·1· talking, everyone's going to be unhappy.· So just --

·2· what do you think I should do Mr. Hosmer?

·3· · · · · ·MR. HOSMER-HENNER:· Go ahead and speak.

·4· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Mr. Lattin?

·5· · · · · ·MR. LATTIN:· Go ahead and speak, your

·6· Honor.

·7· · · · · ·MR. ROBISON:· Your Honor, I argued last

·8· week in the supreme court and the pivotal issue was

·9· a comment made by the trial judge about stuff she

10· had in her head because of an in-camera inspection

11· and the supreme court justices were all over that.

12· And I'm pretty sure I'm going to get reversed

13· because of a comment made by a trial judge that was,

14· I think, exacerbated on appeal.

15· · · · · ·But, nonetheless, I'd ask the Court to have

16· caution because this may be there some day.· I'd

17· rather defend the merits than a comment that you

18· gratuitously make about some evidence or somebody,

19· and I'm sorry to take position but if it weren't for

20· last --

21· · · · · ·THE COURT:· As soon as the printer goes, I

22· can't hear.

23· · · · · ·MR. ROBISON:· I said if it weren't for last

24· week's argument with the court, I wouldn't have
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·1· taken this position and I'd welcome anything you

·2· have to say about this.· But if this is up in the

·3· supreme court, we want to defend the merits and the

·4· testimony and evidence.

·5· · · · · ·MR. CONNOT:· I mean, cognizant of what Mr.

·6· Robison relayed to the Court about the recent cases,

·7· I don't know the context of it, in-camera or

·8· inspection or otherwise, but from

·9· counter-petitioner, Wendy Jaksick's, perspective, we

10· would join Mr. Hosmer-Henner and Mr. Lattin to go

11· ahead and speak.

12· · · · · ·THE COURT:· If I choose to speak, I'm not

13· ruling in any way.· I'm just sharing my observations

14· so far, which you'll never get from a jury

15· fact-finder and it may help as you fashion the

16· presentation and arguments.

17· · · · · ·And should this dispute continue, as it

18· appears it will, there will be appellate review.

19· Having clerked at the Nevada Supreme Court and

20· spending some years on the central legal staff, I'm

21· aware a little bit of how cases are -- the process

22· for review, and sometimes there's not context.

23· · · · · ·And I hope that any review of this case

24· will include the context of what I have observed as
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·1· the trial judge and what has been presented.· This

·2· is an atypical dispute in the state court.· It's

·3· welcome.· We hope to accommodate your request for

·4· judicial dispute resolution but it is atypical.

·5· · · · · ·Counsel, do you understand that if I share

·6· my inclinations, that they will likely fall on both

·7· sides of the courtroom?

·8· · · · · ·MR. CONNOT:· Yeah.

·9· · · · · ·MR. LATTIN:· I do, your Honor.

10· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Yes, your Honor.· This is in no

11· way a complaint because I'm speaking to very busy

12· trial attorneys and the work of a trial judge is not

13· nearly as stressful as the work of a trial attorney.

14· · · · · ·I just reflect that I spend days and

15· evenings and weekends reading trial transcripts and

16· exhibits.· I'm not a judge.· At my best I'm not an

17· active judge that makes oral pronouncements but I

18· sit with the evidence and it works its way in my

19· mind.

20· · · · · ·And after this case was tried, I tried

21· another bench case, similar issues, different

22· values, and it's remarkable to me how my analysis is

23· flowing in contrast to some of the things I said at

24· the end of trial.
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·1· · · · · ·And I don't want to make any more

·2· pronouncements but I think it will be helpful if you

·3· hear from me and I will do so with the polite

·4· admonition not to create too much air, although I

·5· think when I said "good morning," I may have created

·6· air for somebody this morning.· It's gonna be heavy

·7· and it's going to be unlikeable.

·8· · · · · ·And I'm going to take 10 or 15 minutes and

·9· I'm going to take what I have as multiple pages and

10· I'm going to share with you what I'm thinking only

11· so you can adjust your trial evidence and arguments

12· accordingly.· Court will be in recess until probably

13· ten minutes to the hour.

14· · · · · ·(Recess taken.)

15· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Please be seated.· I'm prepared

16· to speak but the deputy said --

17· · · · · ·MR. ROBISON:· Well, can we put something on

18· the record prior to you speaking?

19· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Yes.

20· · · · · ·MR. ROBISON:· Okay.· Your Honor, we have

21· been discussing the process for this phase of the

22· trial, the equitable claims, and petitioner and Todd

23· individually would ask that you not address your

24· comments and feelings at this point in time -- not
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·1· speaking for them but this is part of their deal --

·2· they and Stan's counsel want you to comment on

·3· whatever it is you wanted to comment on.

·4· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Mr. Lattin is now joining you?

·5· · · · · ·MR. LATTIN:· Yes, based upon what our

·6· stipulation is and discussions have been as to how

·7· to proceed.

·8· · · · · ·MR. CONNOT:· I'll mention it was three to

·9· two.

10· · · · · ·MR. ROBISON:· Mr. Connot thinks this is a

11· vote.

12· · · · · ·In any event, your Honor, we've entered

13· into a stipulation with respect to Wendy's new

14· exhibits and I'd like to put that on the record.

15· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Yes.

16· · · · · ·MR. ROBISON:· Exhibit 561, the $4 million

17· chart, is stipulated into evidence and we offer it.

18· · · · · ·MR. SPENCER:· No -- it's stipulated, your

19· Honor.

20· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Wonderful.· Next in order.· It

21· will be admitted.

22· · · · · ·MR. ROBISON:· 583 is the verdict.

23· Counsel's withdrawing that.

24· · · · · ·MR. SPENCER:· Yes, your Honor.
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·1· · · · · ·THE COURT:· I have it in my hand.· We don't

·2· need to admit it into evidence.

·3· · · · · ·MR. ROBISON:· 584 is the Stan and Todd

·4· settlement agreement that's being offered by Wendy.

·5· And speaking for Adam, Stan objects to the

·6· introduction of that and Petitioners object to the

·7· introduction of the settlement agreement that is

·8· marked as Exhibit 584.

·9· · · · · ·With respect to 585, it's the financial

10· statements for SSJ's Issue Trust.· We stipulate to

11· its authenticity and the foundation but we object on

12· the grounds of relevance.

13· · · · · ·There are pleadings with respect to a

14· motion to compel, 588, 589, 590, and 587 that we

15· think are part of, basically, the second

16· supplemental petition and the petitioners object, as

17· does Todd individually, to the introduction of these

18· pleadings.

19· · · · · ·MR. SPENCER:· And the idea on the ones that

20· are not stipulated, your Honor, we're going to move

21· -- once we're finished, we'll move to admit all of

22· those and then we will -- they'll object and then

23· either -- whether you can rule now -- I don't know

24· if you can -- or we'll hope to get a ruling by the
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·1· end of the week and that'll end -- we'll get to the

·2· rest of our stipulations in just a moment.

·3· · · · · ·MR. ROBISON:· We're asking for an

·4· evidentiary ruling from the Court on what we're

·5· briefing and that's why I'm making this record as to

·6· which are stipulated in and which are objected to.

·7· · · · · ·Wendy has offered some correspondence that

·8· has occurred since the verdict.· It's 586, 591, 592,

·9· 593, 594, 595, and 597.· We stipulated these into

10· evidence with the right to challenge their

11· relevance.

12· · · · · ·MR. LATTIN:· They do not have to present a

13· witness to -- excuse me.· With regard to the

14· exhibits that were just outlined by Mr. Robison, we

15· will stipulate to foundation but not relevancy; in

16· other words, they don't have to present a witness to

17· authenticate them.

18· · · · · · THE COURT:· And then you argue relevance,

19· probative value and so forth.

20· · · · · ·MR. LATTIN:· Exactly.

21· · · · · ·MR. ROBISON:· Your Honor, I add to that

22· list Exhibit 596.· So it's 595, 596, 597, 598, 594,

23· 593, 591, 592.

24· · · · · ·Your Honor, during the trial with the jury
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·1· all counsel entered into a stipulation to admit a

·2· series of exhibits that we met and conferred about.

·3· Court clerk has properly reflected on each one of

·4· those proposed exhibits that they were stipulated to

·5· but we did not actually offer those into evidence.

·6· · · · · ·So, off the clerk's list of exhibits, those

·7· which are reflected as stipulated but not reflected

·8· as in evidence, we ask that those be moved into

·9· evidence and accepted into evidence.

10· · · · · ·MR. CONNOT:· So agreed.· Just -- I hadn't

11· thought of this before, Kent.· That would be for

12· purposes of the entire record just in case there is

13· anything post-trial that we could argue those as

14· part of the jury claims too.

15· · · · · ·I think the agreement was stipulated.· We

16· didn't go through the formal technicality of getting

17· them admitted, although we stipulated to them, but

18· they can be used for all purposes.· We hadn't

19· previously discussed that.

20· · · · · ·MR. ROBISON:· We're stipulating them into

21· evidence.

22· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay.

23· · · · · ·MR. ROBISON:· Then, your Honor --

24· · · · · ·THE CLERK:· Are they all admitted into
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·1· evidence?

·2· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Yes.

·3· · · · · ·MR. ROBISON:· Your Honor, based upon that,

·4· Wendy is offering two exhibits to which I believe

·5· Stan, Todd and the trustees object.· One is Exhibit

·6· 415, which is a series of documents and photographs

·7· pertaining to the house that Todd presently occupies

·8· and we objected to this during trial, newly produced

·9· evidence, and we are again objecting to that but

10· counsel's offering that in evidence, 415.

11· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay.

12· · · · · ·MR. ROBISON:· Finally, your Honor, the

13· settlement agreement is being offered into evidence

14· by Wendy's counsel.· It's being objected by Stan,

15· Todd, and the trustees.

16· · · · · ·Having made that record on exhibits, your

17· Honor, the further part of the stipulation that we

18· entered into is that we will submit the case to you

19· today based upon those stipulations.· We would ask

20· that there -- all parties be permitted to file

21· briefs on the issues within 30 days from today and

22· that simultaneous responsive briefs be filed for the

23· Court's consideration 30 days thereafter and the

24· matter on the equity claims will be then considered
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·1· submitted.

·2· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Thank you.· Why is that

·3· stipulation preferable to the clients?· First,

·4· expenses of litigation.· What else?

·5· · · · · ·MR. ROBISON:· That is basically a

·6· consideration that the tremendous amount of money

·7· that's been spent on this case by the trust and

·8· costs and fees incurred by all parties, one.

·9· · · · · ·Two, it effectively replaces what we would

10· have otherwise done for these couple days because we

11· are all satisfied now that we have enough evidence

12· before this court to argue our respective positions

13· in an economical and fiscally responsible way.

14· · · · · ·MR. SPENCER:· Your Honor, if I could add to

15· that that I think, as I mentioned earlier, I see a

16· real advantage to us setting up a roadmap for you to

17· have with you -- not that you wouldn't get what we

18· would say orally, but you could take everybody's

19· briefs and identifying exhibits, identifying

20· evidence, identifying highlights of arguments as to

21· certain issues and you would have that right at your

22· hand as a reference.· And I think the third reason

23· would be just clarity and simplicity of presentation

24· to your Honor.
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·1· · · · · ·MR. ROBISON:· And I might add, your Honor,

·2· we all have a full transcript, so we're pretty much

·3· good to go and now we have all the exhibits.

·4· · · · · ·THE COURT:· It's actually very helpful to

·5· me because I will wrestle with the transcripts and

·6· exhibits.· I can't replace that.· I look forward to

·7· it.· I do look forward to it to synthesize and

·8· understand, so those roadmaps and arguments, that

·9· would be helpful.

10· · · · · ·MR. ROBISON:· I might add, if the Court --

11· rather than submit 300 exhibits to a motion, it

12· would be easier for us to refer to the exhibits so

13· they're not attached to the briefs.

14· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Please, yes.

15· · · · · ·Mr. Lattin why the economy in mind?· You

16· now don't want to hear from the Court?

17· · · · · ·MR. LATTIN:· Well, I think with the

18· briefing schedule it was my understanding that you

19· wanted us to consider your comments in order to,

20· perhaps, tailor our arguments or pinpoint evidence

21· that you wanted to hear during this equitable

22· proceeding.

23· · · · · ·Now, having a stipulated process as to how

24· we do that, I'm not sure the comments would be of
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·1· value.· And I don't mean to say it that way.

·2· · · · · ·THE COURT:· No, no.· You're fine.

·3· · · · · ·MR. LATTIN:· They always have value but in

·4· the context of this.

·5· · · · · ·THE COURT:· The only value maybe they may

·6· have is that if conversations continue out of my

·7· presence, but that's the only value now.

·8· · · · · ·MR. LATTIN:· If I may, in the context of

·9· this case when comments are made that favor or

10· disfavor a particular person, people become more

11· entrenched in their positions as opposed to

12· listening to both sides and saying, Well, he said

13· things about both of us, or, He made this comment or

14· he made this.· So, my having been involved in the

15· settlement process at a very localized level, it

16· causes people to become entrenched and that is my

17· concern.

18· · · · · ·MR. ROBISON:· Could drive us apart.

19· · · · · ·MR. SPENCER:· It could cause people that

20· are entrenched to not be so entrenched as well.· We

21· perceive that to be the case.· We were set to be

22· here all week for trial and our schedule is set

23· aside for that.· And we would stay as long as it

24· took if we were making progress as far as
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·1· negotiations went.

·2· · · · · ·We would find your Honor's inclinations,

·3· knowing that they're not rulings yet, we believe

·4· those to help the process, actually, and we would --

·5· that's why we're in favor of it.

·6· · · · · ·MR. HOSMER-HENNER:· Your Honor, the parties

·7· didn't settle before the jury verdict.· They didn't

·8· settle after the jury verdict.· I don't think it's

·9· going to be possible to get insight into how the

10· Nevada Supreme Court is thinking about it, but I

11· think at least some insight into this portion of the

12· trial would help in terms of the settlement process.

13· · · · · ·But, more importantly, I think if we're

14· going to be submitting briefs to your Honor -- and I

15· don't think a page limit has been discussed yet but

16· I might encourage one -- that I think the guidance

17· you provide would certainly help that briefing as

18· well.

19· · · · · ·THE COURT:· I'm not inclined to impose a

20· page limit.· I'm sorry.· Some of you will be

21· aggrieved by that but there is voluminous material,

22· thousands of pages in transcripts.

23· · · · · ·Counsel will judge for themselves how

24· precise and effective their advocacy is and the
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·1· risks of enlarging what is already large.· I want to

·2· be economical but I just don't want to randomly pick

·3· a page number.· Let me just think.· Five attorneys

·4· in the well of the court, two who have been involved

·5· with other cases for some time, five who are

·6· experienced trial attorneys in this case and

·7· elsewhere disagree.

·8· · · · · ·So, Mr. Lattin, I really want to think

·9· carefully about what you say.· You're a welcomed

10· trial attorney in Department 15.· You say it may

11· cause parties to become more entrenched.· But as I

12· look at the first phase of this trial, what's the

13· worst possible situation?· They remain entrenched?

14· So are there conversations out of my presence?  A

15· Texas football example, are you 60 yards down the

16· field or 80 yards down the field or just kind of --

17· · · · · ·MR. LATTIN:· We're about 95 yards away from

18· the goal line.

19· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay.

20· · · · · ·MR. SPENCER:· If I could comment, I think

21· that just where things stand I would disagree that

22· we're that far away.· I think we got close enough

23· prior to trial but we were still too far to get it

24· done.· But we're making -- I would consider us to be
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·1· making progress.· Whether it's 35 yards down the

·2· field or 50 may be debatable, but we're moving the

·3· ball, and I don't believe it's quite that distant.

·4· · · · · ·THE COURT:· So, what's the worst that can

·5· happen?· You're entrenched and submit everything

·6· too.

·7· · · · · ·MR. SPENCER:· Yeah.· We're in the same

·8· position.· As you mentioned, entrenched before the

·9· trial and entrenched since the trial, and if

10· something makes someone entrenched, they're already

11· entrenched.· I think it would be the opposite effect

12· to get someone out of the entrenchment.

13· · · · · ·(Begin excerpted proceedings.)

14· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Counsel, what I'm about to say

15· does not foreshadow my decision in this case.· There

16· is a disconnect between oral pronouncement and a

17· written entered order.· What I'm about to say is not

18· even on oral pronouncement.· Counsel, you all know

19· that judges can change their oral pronouncements at

20· any time and this does not rise to an oral

21· pronouncement.

22· · · · · ·I hope that through my comments no personal

23· inferences are made about trial counsel.· They are

24· certainly not intended.· Each of you have done the
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·1· job you've been retained to do and you've viewed

·2· this dispute differently, you have approached it

·3· differently, but you have zealously represented your

·4· clients and the outcome so far has been a mutually

·5· assured destruction that's just been difficult to

·6· observe as three siblings with a common father, who

·7· I believe the evidence shows was a remarkable man,

·8· to watch these three siblings has been difficult.

·9· And if my comments bring you one step away from

10· mutually assured discretion, they may be beneficial.

11· · · · · ·I am troubled by the unjust enrichment and

12· constructive trust claims.· I am intrigued by the

13· jury trial arguments.· We all understand the

14· distinction between legal and equitable claims but

15· at the end no one person should be able to bite at

16· two different fact-finding apples.· And as the

17· Nevada Supreme Court said, in the Wolfe v. Wolfe

18· decision, "We can call a duck a horse, but that does

19· not change the fact that it's still a duck."· And

20· the claim for money damages and breach of fiduciary

21· duty was made, was made strategically to a jury, and

22· I will be very, very careful that anything I do does

23· not supplant, does not invade what has occurred so

24· far.· So, if we dress up the equitable claims so
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·1· they look different and sound different but they're

·2· really at the same core grievance with requests for

·3· substantial money damages, I am concerned about

·4· that.

·5· · · · · ·As to ACPAs and indemnification agreements,

·6· they were an integral part of the trial.· Counsel

·7· was careful to say, The Honorable Judge Hardy will

·8· make that decision in the future, and regularly

·9· identified that it was not a decision point for the

10· jury, but those documents were broadcast ad nauseam

11· and must in some way have landed in the jury's

12· minds.· And so, I'm not -- I do not begin the

13· equitable claims with freshness and neutrality about

14· unjust enrichment, constructive trust, and the

15· violative impermissible nature of the ACPAs and

16· indemnification agreements.

17· · · · · ·The trust has some problems, I believe,

18· with accountings and notices.· I think that I -- I

19· perceive now and look forward to counsel's

20· assistance, but I perceive a distinction between

21· statutory notice and fair notice.· This is not a

22· standard trust and standard statutory components of

23· accounting may not provide the answers to questions

24· that exist.

http://www.litigationservices.com
http://www.litigationservices.com


Page 42
·1· · · · · ·There are fair questions about whether

·2· Wendy through counsel knew as much about the trust

·3· activities such that she could have avoided all of

·4· this.· For example, one of the more striking

·5· features of evidence was actually just admitted into

·6· evidence, and that was that on the witness stand for

·7· the very first time it appears that Wendy learned

·8· there was $4 million coming to her.· Now, when a

·9· beneficiary learns that in the course of trial,

10· having spent $1 million on fees drilling into what

11· trusts own and values, there could be a problem

12· there.

13· · · · · ·So, I see it different than statutory

14· compliance.· I'm fairly confident that I'll get

15· admissible persuasive expert testimony that T's and

16· I's were crossed and dotted on the accountings, but

17· I'm still uncertain about whether there was

18· fairness, particularly the use of the hyphens and

19· the entities without values, so I'm concerned about

20· that.

21· · · · · ·Counsel, for some time during trial and

22· since trial I have focused on something that

23· troubles me, and that is there is just this sense I

24· have and unsettling about the 2012 processes,
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·1· documents and amendments.· There was a level of

·2· sloppiness in production and maintenance of

·3· documents, dates and signatures, and the use of an

·4· internal notary whose loyalty is apparent and who

·5· failed to maintain the required books and records

·6· creates problems for me.· It doesn't result, as I

·7· think about it, in money damages but it shades in

·8· some of the questions that Wendy's been asking.· Is

·9· there something nefarious afoot?

10· · · · · ·Well, maybe not, but is it a fair question?

11· I just left the bench after the notary testified

12· finding that to be just unsettling and consistent

13· with 2012 irregularities.· I don't know what the

14· answer is but I invite you to consider it as you

15· argue to me.

16· · · · · ·I'm not intrigued by the no-contest clause

17· but I can be persuaded either way.· That no contest

18· cause is really grounded in the sufficiency of

19· notice, not the statutory notice, but the quality of

20· notice, when coupled with those 2012 irregularities,

21· I'm just not sure that I'm gonna stamp a no-contest

22· declaration against Wendy in this case.

23· · · · · ·I perceive each of the parties differently,

24· and I failed to say this because it segues into what
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·1· I would say next.· I responded well to Stan Jaksick,

·2· to his testimony.· He kind of was a family guru

·3· sometimes.· He struck me as honest and dependable.

·4· His role in this three-sibling dispute was

·5· attractive to the court.

·6· · · · · ·Wendy has some very complex personal issues

·7· that lessen her credibility, her judgment, her

·8· motivations.· She suffers from a credibility problem

·9· with this court.

10· · · · · ·And I don't make the same findings against

11· Todd that there are personal issues revealed by the

12· consequences of poor choices, but there is something

13· unsettling about his personal motivations when

14· serving as trustee and his dependence upon a

15· deflection to others.· The jury did find there was a

16· breach of fiduciary duty.· The amount was nominal,

17· particularly in context of that sought, but the jury

18· has made a specific finding that Todd has breached

19· his fiduciary duties.· It's difficult for me to

20· contemplate how this dispute looks if at the outset

21· there were not beneficiary trustees but, instead,

22· there was neutrality without exception.

23· · · · · ·I tried one case in this department in

24· front of Judge Breen and I represented the
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·1· designated successor trustee of the trust and it was

·2· a sibling battle.· And Judge Breen sat at this bench

·3· and leaned back and he reached a decision I just

·4· didn't like and he didn't appoint my designated

·5· client -- my client as the designated successor

·6· trustee, but he had the wisdom to know that these

·7· family dynamics create problems.

·8· · · · · ·And so while I'm not inclined toward unjust

·9· enrichment and constructive trust, I have

10· contemplated and wondered about the propriety of

11· replacing the trustee.

12· · · · · ·I don't know that I'll say any more than

13· that based upon the requests that have been made but

14· that's an issue that remains available to my mind as

15· I consider an outcome that remedies the past and

16· also prophylactic for the future.

17· · · · · ·As to attorneys' fees, I wouldn't make a

18· decision on the offer of judgment until I have more

19· information.· Counsel, you can stipulate in some

20· additional information or set it for oral arguments.

21· I know that I look at offers of judgment differently

22· than lawyers want me to and some of my colleagues

23· do.

24· · · · · ·As I read the authority, the underlying
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·1· spirit -- purpose of these offers of judgment is to

·2· actually tempt settlement.· I've seen offers of

·3· judgment of $100 and the $100 comes to mind and

·4· probably $1,000.· It's not really to tempt

·5· settlement but it's to create a protective cocoon

·6· around the fees in case there's a victory.

·7· · · · · ·And $25,000 may not have tempted

·8· settlement, really, given the litigation energy and

·9· costs that had been borne, particularly when we add

10· post -- some interest.· You know, we're talking

11· about what could be a $4,000 or $5,000 swing in a

12· case in which several millions of dollars were

13· issued.

14· · · · · ·So, I learned along the way that that offer

15· of judgment was not nearly as good as other efforts

16· to settle and it was -- I just need to -- I need

17· better context about whether that $25,000 was a real

18· attempt to settle the case or whether it was just an

19· attempt to implicate the offer of judgment

20· authorities.

21· · · · · ·That use of the notary who did not keep

22· records and books and who worked internally to

23· Mr. Stan Jaksick and subsequently to Todd could very

24· well be a decision of several hundred thousand
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·1· dollars in fees.· That's how strongly I feel about

·2· the unreliability of the 2012 documents as it came

·3· through in the Hascheff and the notary.

·4· · · · · ·And something that's open in my mind -- I

·5· just haven't resolved it -- is how I start awarding

·6· fees to trustees based upon, I mean, overwhelming

·7· victory in front of the jury but a finding of breach

·8· of fiduciary duties.· I just don't know what I'll do

·9· with fees.· That's not an issue right before me but

10· something that's percolating in my mind.· Should I

11· replace Todd Jaksick as trustee, I would probably

12· have Ms. Wendy Jaksick propose a trustee, Mr. Todd

13· Jaksick propose a trustee, Stan remaining trustee

14· and move forward into the future.

15· · · · · ·I think that's all I'm going to say.· You

16· want an evidentiary ruling so you know what

17· arguments to make.· How do you propose getting those

18· evidentiary rulings?· Do you want to argue it now or

19· do you want to submit it on paper by 5:00 tomorrow

20· and hear from me by Friday?· What can I do to make

21· this ...

22· · · · · ·MR. ROBISON:· What I'd like to propose,

23· your Honor, is they make an offer of proof on the

24· ones that were not agreed upon by tomorrow at 5:00
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·1· and we respond by Thursday at 5:00 and you make the

·2· call as you see it.

·3· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Okay.

·4· · · · · ·MR. SPENCER:· I think that's fair.· It

·5· works.

·6· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Which of the attorneys wants to

·7· the responsibility to draft the stipulation to

·8· include the timing details and submit it to the

·9· court for signature?

10· · · · · ·MR. ROBISON:· Be happy to do it, your

11· Honor.

12· · · · · ·THE COURT:· Thank you.· Why don't you do

13· that sometime by next week.· I'll speak to the

14· evidentiary decisions this week.

15· · · · · ·Anything else?

16· · · · · ·MR. ROBISON:· No your Honor.

17· · · · · ·MR. SPENCER:· No, your Honor.

18· · · · · · THE COURT:· Okay.· Good day, everybody.

19· We'll be in recess.

20· · · · · ·(End of proceedings.)

21· · · · · · · · · · · · ·-o0o-

22

23

24
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·1· STATE OF NEVADA· · ·)
· · · · · · · · · · · · )· · SS.
·2· COUNTY OF WASHOE· · )
·3· · · ·I, CHRISTINA MARIE AMUNDSON, official reporter
·4· of the Second Judicial District Court of the State
·5· of Nevada, in and for the County of Washoe, do
·6· hereby certify:
·7· · · ·That as such reporter, I was present in
·8· Department No. 15 of the above court on May 13,
·9· 2019, at the hour of 9:57 a.m. of said day, and I
10· then and there took verbatim stenotype notes of the
11· proceedings had and testimony given therein in the
12· case of the Administration of the SSJ's Issue Trust
13· and Samuel Jaksick Family Trust, Consolidated, Case
14· No. PR17-00445.
15· · · ·That the foregoing transcript is a true and
16· correct transcript of my said stenotype notes so
17· taken as aforesaid, and is a true and correct
18· statement of the proceedings had and testimony given
19· in the above-entitled action to the best of my
20· knowledge, skill and ability.
21
· · DATED:· At Reno, Nevada, on 16th day of May 2019.
22
23· · · · ·/S/ Christina Marie Amundson, CCR #641
· · · ·_____________________________________________
24
· · · · · · ·Christina Marie Amundson, CCR #641
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Co-Trustee of the Family Trust 
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STANLEY JAKSICK’S WRITTEN CLOSING ARGUMENTS  

 Stanley Jaksick, as Co-Trustee of the Family Trust, hereby submits his Written Closing 

Brief in accordance with the procedure defined at the May 17, 2019 hearing and by the Court’s 

June 26, 2019 Order Granting Emergency Motion to Extend Briefing Deadline. In accordance 

with the June 26, 2019 Order, Stanley Jaksick will submit a Closing Brief by July 31, 2019. As 

Stanley Jaksick does not have the burden of proof or persuasion on any of the equitable claims 

remaining in this action, the majority of Stanley Jaksick’s closing presentation, to the extent 

necessary, will be contained within the Closing Brief for the reasons detailed below.  

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

I. INTRODUCTION 

As a result of 1) the jury verdict on Wendy Jaksick’s legal claims against Stanley Jaksick 

as co-Trustee Samuel S. Jaksick Jr. Family Trust (“Family Trust”), which was entirely in favor 

of Stanley Jaksick; 2) the Settlement Agreement, Exhibit 584, between Todd Jaksick and Stanley 

Jaksick; and 3) the dismissal of Wendy Jaksick’s claims against Stanley Jaksick in his individual 

capacity on August 24, 2018, the only remaining claims relating to Stanley Jaksick are the 

equitable claims brought by Wendy Jaksick against Stanley Jaksick in his capacity as co-Trustee 

of the Family Trust. Based on the identification of these equitable claims in the January 22, 2019 

Pre-Trial Order, the following claims by Wendy Jaksick against Stanley Jaksick as co-Trustee of 

the Family Trust are still at issue: 1) Failure to Disclose and Adequately Account to Compel 

Accounting (Family Trust); 2) Contest of Purported ACPAs (Family Trust); 3) Contest of 

Purported Indemnity Agreement (Family Trust); 4) Declaratory Judgment – No Contest 

Provision (Family Trust); 5) Unjust Enrichment and Constructive Trust (Family Trust); 6) 

Removal of Trustees and Appointment of Independent Trustee(s) (Family Trust); 7) 

Disgorgement of Trustee Fees (Family Trust); 8) Enjoin Trustees from Using Trust Assets to 

Defend in this Matter (Family Trust); and 9) Award of Attorneys’ Fees and Costs.  

II. ARGUMENT 

Throughout this litigation, whether during the jury trial, in motion practice, or in 

depositions, Stanley Jaksick has consistently challenged the vague claims that Wendy Jaksick 
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has brought against him, as co-Trustee of the Samuel S. Jaksick Jr. Family Trust (“Family 

Trust”). See Stanley Jaksick’s Answer to First Amended Counter-Petition, Aug. 2, 2018 (stating 

throughout that the paragraphs in the First Amended Counter-Petition contain “no factual 

allegations relating to this answering party and therefore no admission or denial is required 

thereto”). Despite repeated attempts to obtain specificity, the nature of Wendy Jaksick’s claims 

remains as amorphous and unsubstantiated as at the outset of this litigation. In order to sustain 

claims against Stanley Jaksick, Wendy Jaksick must be able to satisfy her basic burden by 

identifying her claim against Stanley Jaksick and not just the Family Trust or other co-Trustees 

and identifying the evidence related to Stanley Jaksick and not to the Family Trust in general. 

Because Wendy Jaksick has failed to meet this basic burden, the Court should enter judgment 

against her claims against Stanley Jaksick.  

 Wendy Jaksick, as a beneficiary of the Family Trust, has the burden of proof on her 

claims against Stanley Jaksick, as co-Trustee of the Family Trust. See, e.g., 90A C.J.S. Trusts § 

689 (“One who seeks to surcharge the trustee for a breach of trust must bear the burden of 

proving the particulars of the trustee's alleged wrongful conduct . . . Objectors to the account of 

the trustee have the burden of sustaining their affirmative allegations, and the burden of proof is 

on the one who charges a trustee with abusing discretion8 or falsifying accounts.”). It is also not 

sufficient for Wendy Jaksick to impose liability upon Stanley Jaksick based solely on his status 

as a co-Trustee of the Family Trust. The composition of the co-Trustees has varied over time. 

Stanley Jaksick and Todd Jaksick have served as co-Trustees of the Family Trust from April 21, 

2013 to the present. Kevin Riley served as co-Trustee of the Family Trust from approximately 

April 21, 2013 to August 2013. Michael Kimmel was appointed on December 13, 2016 as a co-

Trustee of the Family Trust. While Stanley Jaksick has consistently served as co-Trustee of the 

Family Trust, Nevada law does not automatically impose responsibility upon him for every 

action of the Family Trust.  

 NRS 163.110(1) provides that a “trustee who has not joined in exercising a power is not 

liable to the beneficiaries or to others for the consequences of the exercise of power and a 

dissenting trustee is not liable for the consequences of an act in which that trustee joined at the 
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direction of the majority trustees, if the trustee expressed his or her dissent in writing to any of 

his or her cotrustees at or before the time of the joinder.” NRS 163.110(2) further provides that 

this “section does not excuse a cotrustee from liability for inactivity in the administration of the 

trust nor for failure to attempt to prevent a breach of trust.” As Stanley Jaksick disagreed with 

several of the actions challenged by Wendy Jaksick, he is immunized from liability by NRS 

163.110. 
 

A. Failure to Disclose and Adequately Account to Compel Accounting (Family  
Trust) 

 

To date, Wendy Jaksick has not identified any instances where Stanley Jaksick failed to 

disclose information in his possession or knowledge to Wendy Jaksick. Stanley Jaksick will 

respond to any such identification in the Closing Brief, but Wendy Jaksick should not be 

permitted to specifically identify, for the very first time in this litigation, the substance of her 

claims in the Closing Brief. With respect to the Family Trust accountings, Stanley Jaksick will 

respond with respect to his involvement, if any, in the claims related to the accountings in his 

Closing Brief.  

B. Contest of Purported ACPAs (Family Trust) 

With respect to the Family Trust ACPAs, Wendy Jaksick should be required to identify 

which ACPAs she is currently contesting. Stanley Jaksick will respond with respect to his 

involvement, if any, in the claims related to the ACPAs in his Closing Brief. 

C. Contest of Purported Indemnity Agreement (Family Trust) 

This claim has not been asserted against Stanley Jaksick as, although Exhibit 12 reflects 

the existence of an indemnification agreement executed by Stanley Jaksick, Wendy Jaksick has 

not identified any instance of Stanley Jaksick invoking this indemnification agreement.  

D. Declaratory Judgment – No Contest Provision (Count 10 -Family Trust) 

This claim has not been asserted against Stanley Jaksick as Wendy Jaksick neither claims 

that Stanley Jaksick violated a no-contest provision nor that Stanley Jaksick has asserted that 

Wendy Jaksick violated a no-contest provision.  

/// 



 

5 
 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

E. Unjust Enrichment and Constructive Trust (Count 7 - Family Trust) 

To date, Wendy Jaksick has not identified any instances of unjust enrichment by Stanley 

Jaksick as co-Trustee of the Family Trust. Stanley Jaksick will respond to any such identification 

in the Closing Brief, but Wendy Jaksick should not be permitted to specifically identify, for the 

very first time in this litigation, the substance of her claims in the Closing Brief. 

F. Disgorgement of Trustee Fees (Count 9 - Family Trust) 

Although this was listed as a claim in the Pre-Trial Order, Stanley Jaksick submits that 

this is more properly deemed a remedy that is contingent upon the resolution of the substantive 

claims. Furthermore, the First Amended Counter-Petition states that the claim for disgorgement 

of trustee fees is based “upon the various breaches of fiduciary duties as set forth herein.” First 

Am. Counter-Petition ¶ 101. As the jury verdict absolved Stanley Jaksick of any liability for 

breaches of fiduciary duty, there is no basis to order Stanley Jaksick to disgorge any trustees’ 

fees.  
 
G. Removal of Trustees and Appointment of Independent Trustee(s) (Count 6 - 

Family Trust) 
 

Although this was listed as a claim in the Pre-Trial Order, Stanley Jaksick submits that 

this is more properly deemed a remedy that is contingent upon the resolution of the substantive 

claims. Furthermore, the First Amended Counter-Petition states that the claim for disgorgement 

of trustee fees is based upon “the breaches of fiduciary duties and other actions described 

herein.” First Am. Counter-Petition ¶ 90. As the jury verdict absolved Stanley Jaksick of any 

liability for breaches of fiduciary duty, there is no basis to order Stanley Jaksick to disgorge any 

trustees’ fees. Wendy Jaksick also alleges that the co-Trustees had a “strong bias against Wendy 

and her family,” but this has not been evidenced in relation to Stanley Jaksick. Id. 
 
H. Enjoin Trustees from Using Trust Assets to Defend in this Matter (Count 8 - 

Family Trust) 
 

Although this was listed as a claim in the Pre-Trial Order, Stanley Jaksick submits that 

this is more properly deemed a remedy that is contingent upon the resolution of the substantive 

claims.  
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I. Award of Attorneys’ Fees and Costs (Count 12) 

Although this was listed as a claim in the Pre-Trial Order, Stanley Jaksick submits that 

this is more properly deemed a remedy that is contingent upon the resolution of the substantive 

claims. Wendy Jaksick’s own pleading supports this position: “This remedy is warranted . . .” 

First Am. Counter-Petition ¶ 114 (referring to Count 12: “Wendy is Entitled to be Awarded 

Attorneys’ Fees and Costs”).  

Affirmation 

The undersigned does hereby affirm that pursuant to NRS 239B.030, the preceding 

document does not contain the social security number of any person. 
 

DATED: July 1, 2019    
 

McDONALD CARANO  
 
 
By /s/ Adam Hosmer-Henner   

Adam Hosmer-Henner, Esq.  
100 West. Liberty Street, 10th Floor 
Reno, Nevada 89501 
 
Attorneys for Stanley Jaksick,  
Co-Trustee of the Family Trust 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I hereby certify that I am an employee of MCDONALD 

CARANO and that on July 1, 2019, I served the foregoing on the parties in said case by 

electronically filing via the Court’s e-filing system. The participants in this case are registered e-

filing users and notice of filing will be served on all parties by operation of the Court’s CM/ECF 

system, and parties may access this filing through the Court’s CM/ECF system. 
 
Donald Lattin, Esq. 
Robert LeGoy, Esq. 
Brian C. McQuaid, Esq. 
Carolyn Renner, Esq. 
Maupin Cox & LeGoy 
4785 Caughlin Parkway 
Reno, NV 89520 

 

Kent Robison, Esq. 
Therese M. Shanks, Esq. 
Robison, Sharp, Sullivan & Brust 
71 Washington Street 
Reno, NV 89503 

 

Mark J. Connot, Esq. 
Fox Rothschild, LLP 
1980 Festival Plaza Drive, # 700 
Las Vegas, NV 89135 
 

Philip L. Kreitlein, Esq. 
Kreitlein Law Group, Ltd. 
1575 Delucci Lane, Ste. 101 
Reno, NV 89502 

 
R. Kevin Spencer, Esq. 
Zachary E. Johnson, Esq. 
Brendan P. Harvell, Esq. 
Spencer Law, P.C. 
500 N. Akard St., Suite 2150 
Dallas, TX 75201 
 

 

  

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 

 DATED:  July 1, 2019. 

 
By  /s/ Pamela Miller     

           An Employee of McDonald Carano 
 
4834-5479-9514, v. 2 
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